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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

UDIN:254052198O8N163918

To the Members of PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the IND AS Financial Statements of PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private

timited (the "company''), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025, and the

statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other Comprehensive lncome, and

statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for The Audit of Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's report but does not include the Financial Statements
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and our auditor's report thereon.

Regd. Office: R-l77, Basement, G(Part 1, New Delhi -'l'10048 INDIA

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in !ndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive

lncome , and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of ChanBes in Equity fortheyearthen
ended, and summary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.



Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of 134(5)

of the companies' act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudenu and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opeftltions, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Audito/s Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an audito/s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the
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Financial Statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (auditor's report) rules,2020("the orde/')issued by the
central Government of lndia in terms of the sub section (11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and

4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and the statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, and statement of cash flows and statement of changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information dealt with in this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
3!, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 3f,2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure C.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its IND AS financial statements to the IND AS financial statements, if
any.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

I!
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.



1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any

other person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities("lntermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company("ultimate beneficiary") or provide any guarantee, security or the like

on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;

2) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been

received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities("Funding Parties") with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company("ultimate beneficiav') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

3) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has

caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (1) and (2)

contain any material mis-statement.

vi. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vii. As per information and explanations given and based on our examination, which
include test checks,the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the
software .Further,during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN:000978N/N s00052

M.No.

CA
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Annexure A to the lndependent audito/s report on even date on the financial statements

of PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited forthe year ended March 31,2025'

Auditor/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. we also:
o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,

whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. obtain an understandin8 of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of

accountinB and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
' uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a materiai
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our audito/s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controlthat we identif, during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN:000978N/N5

CA Ra

M.No.
Date:19-05-2025

Place of Signature: Agra

E
*
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Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (l) of Sub-section 3 of Section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC

Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited as of March 3f,2025 in conjunction with our

audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lcAl and deemed to be

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial

Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

New Delhi

over fi nancial reporting.
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"Annexure C'to the lndependent Auditol's RePort of even date on the financial

statements of PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31,

2025.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the audito/s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement ofthe Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system



A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
.preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized. acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the Financial Statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2025.

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000978N/N500052

CA Ra

M.No. 405219
Date:19-05-2025

Place of Signature: Agra
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PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC316515
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

Particulars Notes
As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

44,945.42
2,505.99

31.63

53,702.02
5,271.70

3.10

58,316.8147,484.U

4,L75.65
L,543.27

25.47
4,4L5.46

79.49
626.09

3,180.t2
1,516.90
1,998.13

4,375.46
409.29
977.t3

ASSETS

Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments
(b) FinancialAssets

(l) Service Concession Receivable
(c) Other Non Current Assets

(i) lnventories
(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade Receivables
(iii) cash and cash Equivalents
(iv) Other Bank Balances
(v) OtherFinancialAssets

(b) Other Current Assets

(1)

Sub Total (Non Current Assets)
(2)

Sub Total (Current Assets)

Current Assets

(a) FinancialAssets

5

6
7.7

7.2
8

9

2

3

4

13,097.03 10,865.76
69,L42,57TotalAssets

6,528.00
(329.08)

6,528.00
(149.s2)

6,198.92 6374.44

48,151.80
8.05

52,983.8s
7.65

48,159.85 52,991.50

4,832.00
770.2!

7,779.LO

0.45
40.53

4,832.@
3,884.61

7,-.9L
105.96
918.11

(3) CurrentLiabilities
(a) Financialtiabilities

(i) Borrowings
(iil Trade Payables
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions

Sub Total (Non current liabilities)

Sub Total (Current Liabilities)

(1) EQUTTY AND r,rABrUTrES

EQU ITY

(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

(2) UABTUTTES

Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Financialtiabilities

(i) Borrowings
(b) Provisions

10
11

12

13

L4
15

L6

L7

18

6,222.29 9,812.59
Total Equity & Liabilities

The accompanying notes 1 to 37 an form integral part of the these financial statements
ln terms of our report of even date attached

ln Lakhs

For and on Behalf ofthe Board of Directors
PNC Bundelkhand Hithways Private Limited

G{For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant$-_.
FRN-OOO978N/NsOQ(62

Gazal Mittal
Managing Director

OIN:06886928

AshwaniRawat
Director

DIN:02941309
l,

CA Raiiv Baj

Partner
M.No.-405219
Date;19.05.2025
Place: Agra

& tt^.,-
Abhinav Khandelwal

Chief Financial Officer
PAN. DNRPKsOS3E

u

60,581.07

Sub Total (Equity)

60,581.07 69,182.57

#*

WY
Sulakxi Agarwal

Company Secretary
M.No{1771



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private limited
CtN :U45309D12017PTCI16515

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

The accompanying notes 1 to 37 an form integral part ofthe these financial statements
ln terms of our report of even date attached

ln Lakhs

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants ni Rawat
Director

DIN:02941309

I

Gazal Mittal
Managing Director

DIN: 05885928
FRN-000978N/N

\).

CA

Partner
M.No.{05219
Date:19.05.2025
Place: Atra

M /slv
Abhinav KhandehYal

Chief FinancialOfficer
PAN. DNRPK5O83E

Sulakxi Agarwal
Company Secretary

M.N041771

Particulars Notes
Year ended

March 31,2024
Year ended

March 31, 2025

5,575.7t
685.98

7,724.58
430.92

8,155.506,261.69

70L.44
4,427.U

4.50
819.17

86.56
4,744.55

o.70
2,440.29

5,352.96 7,272.10
908.73

1,087.83
0.46

883.40

9L6.77
27.54

(179.s6) (60.30)

(179.s6) (60.30)

v
v t

tx

vt

I

I

lv Expenses :

Employee Benefit Expenses

Finance Expense

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Other Expenses

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (llFlv)
Tax Expense :

Current Tax

Tax Expense of Earlier Years

Profit/ (toss| for the Period ( V - Vl I
Other Comprehensive lncome
(i) ltems that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

(ii) lncome Tax Relating to above items
Total Comprehenslve lncome for the period ( Vll + Vlll)
Earring Per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted (in Rsl

Total lncome ( l+ll )

TotalExpenses (lV)

Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

24

19

20

2t
22
2

23

(0.28) (0.09)

o,,,

@,2



Particulars
Year ended

March 31,2025
Year ended

March 31,2024

B.

Cash Flow from Op€rating Actlvities
Net Profft /(Loss) Before Tar & After Exceptional ltemr
Adjustment for:

Depreciation
Finance Cost
(Gain)/loss on sale of lnvestments
(Gain)/loss on Fairvaluation of lnvestments
lnterest lncome

908.73

4.50
4,427.U
(2e4.s8)

(3.84)
(387.15)

883.40

0.70
4,744.55

(104.02)
(37.e4)

1288.97
OperatinB Profit / (l,oss) Before Working Capital Changes 4,655.10 5,197.73

Adiustment of Changes in working Capital
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities
lnc.ease/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Provisions
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Provisions
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Non Current Financial Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in Current Financial Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in current Trade Receivables

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Bank Balances

(3,7L4.401

r,to7.t9
0.41

i'877.58)
(10s.s1)

8,156.60
(32e.80)

(73.63)

2,385.89
(3s1.04)

100.00

(2,134.s8)

33.88
7.25

52.22
98.53

7,202.34
(14.07)

(1.11)

1,691.90
(1.0s)

(s69.00)

Cash Generated lrom/(used) Irom OperatingActivities 10,9s3.22 11,558.14

Direct Taxes Paid 769.47 943.71

Cash (used in )/ from Operating Adivities Before Extraordinary ltems (A) 10,183.75 to,614.43

Cash Flow from lnvesting Adivities
lnterest lncome
Purchase of lnvestments
sale of lnvestments
Purchaseof Fixed Assets

387.r5
(12,28s.00)

12,979.35
33.04

288.97
(14,43s.68)

77,700.42

Net Cash ( used in) / from lnvesting Activities (B) \o44.46 (2,44G.291

Cash Flow from f inancing Activities
BankTerm Loans Raised

Repayment ofTerm Loan

Finance Cost

(4,832.05)
764.OO

(4,228.00)

7.84 4 7 44.55

Net cash ( used in) / from Financing Activities (C) (9,2s9.89) (8,208.ss)

Net Cash lncrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1,972.32
25.81Cash & C.ash E ivalents in Be nn of the r

(40.40)
66.22

Cash & Cash Equivalents a5 at the End oftheyear 1,998.13 25.81

PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U4S309Dl,2017PTC|16S15
Caih Flow Statement forthe Year Ended March 31,2025

The accompanying notes 1to 37 an form integral part ofthe these financial statements
ln terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
rRN-000978N/N500062

M.No.-405219
Date:19.05.2025
Place: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited

Gazal Mittal
Managing Diredor

DIN:06886928
Diredor

DIN:02941309

Rawat

sulakxiAgarwal
Company Secretary

M.No{1771

A/

(d/

CA Rajiv
Partner /*uw.

Abhinav Khandelwal
chiefFinancial Offcer

PAN. DNRPKS083E

c.



As at
Aptil0,.,2024

Changes During the Year
As at

March 31,2025

6,528.00 6,528.00

PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
Cl N :U45309DUo17PTC316515
Statement of Changes ln Equity for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

A.E u Share

B. Other Equity

The accompanying notes I to 37 an form integral part of the these financial statements
ln terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN-000978N/N50(xl62

i\r

CA Ra,iiv Baj

Partner
M.No.{05219
Date:19.05,2025
Place: Agra

ln Lakhs

ln La

ln Lakhs

ln La

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited

Gazal Mittal
Managing Director

DIN:06886928

,Z
Ashwani Rawat

Director
DIN:02941309

cug

/&&".
Abhinav Khandelwal

chief FinancialOfficer

PAN. DNRPK5O83E

sulakxiAgarwal
Company Secretary

M.No-41771

As at
April 01, 2023

Changes During the Year
As at

March 31, 2024
6,528.00 6,528.00

Reserves & surplus
Particulars

Retained Earnings Total
As atApril 1, 2024
Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive lncome for the Period

(149.s2)
(179.s6)

(149.s2)
(179.s6)

Total comprehensive lncome for the Period (32e.08) (32e.08)
(329.08) (329.08)Balance as at March 31, 2025

Reserves & Surplus
Particulars

Retained Earnings Total
(8e.21)
(60.30)

(89.21)
(60.30)

As at April 1, 2023
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive lncome for the Period
Total Comprehensive lncome for the Period (149.s2) (14e.s2)

(149.s2)Balance as at March 31,2024 (149.s2)

fi*
*r,J

M*



PNC Bundelkhand Hishwavs Private l-imited

CIN: U45309DUI017PTC316515

1, Notes forminp Dart of the Financial S for the vear ended on March 31. 2025

1. Basis of Pr€paration
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with lndian accounting standards (lnd AS) notified
under sec 133 of the companies act 2013 (the Ad) read with Companies (lndian accounting standard) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provision of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asseG & Liabilities measured at
fairvalue.

The financial statements are presented in lndian rupees (lNR) with value rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,

thereof, except otherwise indicated.

2. Significant Accounting policies adopted by company in preparation of financial statements

2.1 Property, plant and equlpment
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates tlem separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying
amount of the replace part accounted for as a separate asset previously is derecognized. Likewise, when a major inspection is

performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cost are recognlzed in the statement of profit and loss when incurred, The present

value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis as per the rate derived on the basis of
useful life and method prescribed under schedule-ll of the companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted prospedively,if appropriate.

lmpairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal /external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
value. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assefs net sellint price and value in use. ln assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a per-tax discount rate that retlects current market
assessment of the time value of money and risks specitic to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit

ch an asset is identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrylng
its remaining useful life. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by

of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amo

and lossj-o the year in whi
amount of the asset over
crediting to the stdtement

lqrvr.

Companv information

PNC Bundelkhand Hithways Private Limited The Company has been awarded Four Laning of Jhashi-(hajuraho section (PKG-I)

from km O.OO to 76.03 (existing km 106.3 Kanpur Jhansi section to km 82.10 of NH-75/76 in the state of UP/MP Annuity model

under NHDP (Phase-lll) on Hybrid Annuity Mode.
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2.2 Service Concession Agreements
The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service and

operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time.
These arrangements may include lnfrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful

life. Under Appendix C to lnd AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based on the
nature of the consideration. The Financial asset model is used to the extent that the operator has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. lf the company
performs more than one service (i.e, construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or
arrangement, consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable.
ln the financial asset model, the amount due from the grantor meets the identification of the receivable which is measured at fair
value. lt is subsequently measured at amortized cost. The amount initially recognized plus cumulative interest on that amount is

calculated using the effective interest method. Any asset carried under concession agreements is derecogni2ed on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when contractual right to the financial assets

expires,

Revenue related to SCA:

Revenue related to construction under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of completion of the
work performed.

2.3 Rev€nue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government except to the extent stated
otherwise.

The company has recognized Finance lncome on the outstanding balance of trade receivables as a part of revenue from
operations.

2.4lnterest lncome
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income

is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5 Taxes on lncome
CurrentTax
The income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable only current period's taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate adjusted by changes and deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
loses. The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that

h'.
futuie taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred Tax

Defeffed tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enaded or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax assets is realized or the deferred tax liabilities is settled.

\; lsgrg



Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recogni2ed outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period. such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extend there is no longer the convincing evidence to the effect
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period .

2.6 Foreign currency transactions
The company's financial statements are presented in INR which is also the company's functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency. Using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date or the company's monetary items at the
closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other short term highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subiect to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cnsh flows and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above
Net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management.

2.8 Earnings per thare
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends aod attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares except when the results would be antidilutive.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. lf it is no longer probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets
A contingent liabifty is a
non-occurrence of one o

possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
r more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a presen

,8.*. N

bligation which is not

2.9 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount ofthe obligation.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discountint is used, the increase in the provision due to the passate of time is

recognized as a finan€e cost.

I



recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
lnformation on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the company. Contingent assets are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

2.10 Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recotnized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable- When receivables
and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. Thenet amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2,11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowint costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construdlon or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

2.12 Employee b€nefits
Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined contribution plan. The Company makes
contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952.The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered.

Gratuity (Funded): 6ratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost is determined using the projected unit credit method
with actuarial valuation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary. The retirement benefits
obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as adiusted for recognized
past service cost Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they
occur.

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expeded cost of bonus,
ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benelit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the
service entitlint them to the contribution.

2.13 Financlal lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financjal liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financials Asset
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the compan
determines the classification of its financial assets
transaction gose friiare directly attributable to
value through Frofit orloss.

y becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company
atinitial recognition. Allfinancial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus

the acquisition of the financial asset except for financial assets classified as fair
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Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into three categoriesi
(i) Financial Asset at amortized cost
(ii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI)

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair value through P&L (FVTPL)

FinancialAsset at amortized cost
Financial Asset' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecling contractual cash flows, and
(b) Cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest.

After initial measuremen! such financial assets are subsequently meas!red at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (ElR)

method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition of asset and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the ElR. lncome from these financial assets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial Asset at Fair value through OCI (FVTocl)
'Financial Asset' is classified as at the FWOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractualcash flows and selling the financialassets, and
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest. Financial Asset included within

the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl).

Financial Asset at fair Value through P&l-
FVTPL is a residual category for Financial fusets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Equity lnstruments
All equity investments in scope of lnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. The company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such election on an instrument
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

lf the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCl.

De-recognition of Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
ii) The company has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
iii) The company retains the contractual rights to received cash flows from the financial asset but assumes a contractual

obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the company has transferred the asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of Ofnersnig of the financial assets. ln such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial

$W *sgr-

set is not derecognized.

The subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on their classification, The classification depends on the company's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms ofthe cash flows.

ln addition, the company may elect to designate a Financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as'accounting mismatch').



Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of financial
assets, the financial asset is derecognized if the company has not retained control of the asset. Where the company has retains
control ofthe financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial assets

ln per lnd AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt, securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances.

(b) Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

(c) Lease receivables under lnd AS 116
(d) Trade receivables or any contradual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions

that are within the scope of lnd AS 115 (referred to as "Service Concessional Receivable" in these illustrative financial
statements.

(e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPI
(f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

For recognition of impairment loss of financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

In a subsequent period, if credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, then the company reverts to recognizing impairment Ioss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
!nstrument.

Financial Liabilities
lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of financial liability at initial recognition. Allfinancial liabilities are recognized initially atfair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial Iiability except for financial liabilities
classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Financlal Llabilities at Amortized cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR

method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of prolit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as throu8h
the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Iiabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classiried as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financiafposition at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.
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De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedy transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the company.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The entity uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufricient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizingthe use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuatlon techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.14 Government Grants

Government grants (except those existing on transition date) are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as

income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensatq are expensed. When
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the company receives grants of non-monetary assets. The asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expeded useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying asset by equal annual installments.

3. 5ignifi cant estimate+iuCgments and assumptions
The preparation of finincial statements requires management
It also requires the use of estimated and assumptions that aff

to exercise judgment in applying the company's accounting policies.

ect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitie income and expenses

e- ,t&;*
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and the accompanying disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

3,1 Contingencies and Commitments
ln the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the company. Potential
liabilities that have a low probability of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantity reliably, are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes, lf any, but are not provided for in the financial statements. There can be no assurance
regarding the final outcome of these legal proceedings.

3.2 lmpairment testing
i. Judgment is also required in evaluating the likelihood of collection of customer debt after revenue has been recognized.

This evaluation requir€s estimates to be made, including the level of provision to be made for amounts wlth uncertain
recovery profiles. Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or on
more details reviews of individually significant balances.

ii. Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any indication of impairment also requires judgment. lf an

indication of impairment is identified, further judgment is required to assess whether the carrying amount can be

supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash

flow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

3.3 Taxes

a. The company's tax change is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the company's total
tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriatq through
a formal legal process.

b. Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments and estimates in relation to tax audit issues and
exposures.

c. The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, the availability of the losses to offset against forecast tax3ble profits is also

considered. Recognition therefore involves .iudgment regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal

entity orTax Company in which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

3.4 Fair lIalue measurement
The fair value of linancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technlques. ln
applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument, Where
applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would
make. These estimates may vary form the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting
date. For details of the (@'assumptions (Refer note-27)

A
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PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :1,145309D12017PTGI16515

Notesto The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2025

, Plant & ents

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

ln
Plant &

Equipments
Furniture &

Fixtures
Computers

Office
EquiDments

Electric

Equipment
Vehicles Total

0.23

16.70

4.t7
33.04

Gross Carrying Value
At April 01, 2024

Addition During the Year

Disposal / Adjustments

7.42

16.34

0.23 0.09 1.80

0.23 16.70 37.2LAs At March 31,2025 18.16 0.23 0.09 1.80

Accumulated Deprecialion
At April 01, 2024
Addition During the Year

DisDosal/ Adiustments

0.54
2.54

0.03
0.02

0.04
0.03

0.02

0.02 1.55

1.07
4.50

3.08 0.05 0.78 0.05 1.55 5.58As At March 31,2025

15.15 31.63
Net Carrying Value
as at March 31,2025 15.08 0.18 0.02 1.02 0.19

-II--II
Plant & ments ln

AV&e

Electric
EquiDment

vehicler TotalPaniculars
Plant &

Equipments
turniture &

Fixtures
office

Equipments

t.82 o.23 1.80 o.23 4.17

Gross Carrying Value
At April 01, 2023

Addition During the Year
Dispo5al / Adjustments

0.23 4.L7As At March 31,2024 1.82 0.23 0.09 1.80

0.26
0.28

0.10
0.34

0.00
0.02

0.37
0.70

Accumulated Depreciation
At April 01,2023
Addition Duringthe Year

Disposal / Adiustments

0.01

0.02

0.01
0.03

l.o7Ar At March 3r.,2024 0.54 0.03 0.44 0.02

Net Carrying Value

as at March 31,2024 L.28 0.20 0.05 1.35 0.21 3.10

---II--

Particulars

0.44
o:34

0.07

Compute15

0.09

0.04

2i
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PNC Bundellhand Highways P.ivate timited
CIN :U453U)D120UPrC316515
Notes toThe Financial Statement5 for the Year Ended March 31,2025

Note 3 : Non Current FinanEial Assets

Note 4 : Other Non Curent Assets

Note 5 : lnvestments

Note 6 : Trade Receivables

ln La

ln

ln

ln

ln

4.
€*?

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

Mardr 31, 2025

Service Concession Recervable 44,945.42 s3,102.02

Total 44,945.42 53,102.02

Particulars
As at

Marci 31, 2025

As at
Ma.ch 31, 2024

3,a72.24
7,X76.27

23.25

Recoverable from Governmcnt Authoritics:
GST lnput Tax Credit
Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source
Security for Electricity

7,426.20
1,057.39

23.40

2,so6.99 5,2t7.70Total

Particul.rs
As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31, 2024

4,775.65lnvestments in Mutual Funds 3,7AO.L2

4,r75.65Total 3,780.72

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
Mardr 31, 2025

3,776.28
3,780.t2

4,724.93
4,775.65

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted lnvestments
Aggregate Ma.ket Value of Quoted lnvestments
Aggregate gook Value of Unquoted lnvestments
Accregate Amount of lmoairment on Value of lnvestments

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

Mardr 31,2025

Secured, Considered Good;
National Highways Authoriw of lndia 1,616-90 1,543.27

Total 1,616.90 1,s43.27

b

Particulars



Period
As at

Marcfi 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

Trade receivables Ateing schedule

1,616.90 t,543.27Lessthan 5 Moths
6 Moths to l Year

1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

undisputed T,ade receivablet-considered good

Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year
1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase

Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year

l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

Undisputed Trade receivables^ Gedit impai.ed

Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year
l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

Disputed Trade receivables- considered good

Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase

Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year
l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Yea15

Disputed Trade receivables- Credit impaired

Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year

l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Yearg

Note 7 : Cash and Bank Balances

Note 7.1 : C.5h and Cash ivalents

Note 7.2: Other Bank Balances

ln

ln

ln

'@..' fr,l6t^,,r,

As at
Ma.ch 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

4.16

893.96
1,100.00

1.05

24.76

Cash in Hand

Balancer with Eanks
Current Accounts
ln Term Deposits ( Maturity having less than 3 months)

25.81Total 1,998.13

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

Fixed Deposits(More than Efonths)

Total 4,315.46 4,475.46

PNC Bundellhand Highways Private limited
CIN :U45309Dulo17PTCI16515
Notes to The Financial Statements fo, the Year Ended Ma.ch 31, 2025

"(

4,475.464,315.46



PNC Bundellhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U4S309012017PTC316515
Notes toThe Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2025

Note 8 : Othe. Financial Assets

Note 9 : Other CurJent Assett

ln

ln

a.6e

Particulars
As at

March 31,2025
As at

Ma.ch 3!, 2024

Accrued lnterest on Term Deposits 409.29 79.49

Total 409.29 79.49

Particulars
As at

Mardr 3L 2025
As at

Ma.ch 3L 2024

Advances Othe, than C.pital Advanccs
Adva.ce to Vendors
Prepaid Expenses

Tax Deducted at 59uJcq.€ST

43.06
0.19

933.87

1.85
0.10

624.L1

626.O9/E\,j::{a\ Total 977.L3

ba5'



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309DU1017PTC316515
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 10 : Share Capital
ln Lakhs

Notes 10.1
(a) Reconciliation of the shares Outstanding at the Beginnint and at the End ofthe
Reporting Year

Details of Shares Held Promoters

Rights and Restrlctions Attached to Equity Shares-

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of { 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per

share held. ln case any dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors the same is subject to the approval of the shareholders in

the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of lnterim Dividend.

There are no bonus shares/share issued for consideration other than cash and share bought back since the company incorporated.

ln the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company
after distributio#of preferential amount. The distribution shall be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the

Lrjt-r,

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Authorised
6,53,00,000 (Previous Year 6,53,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

Equity Shares - lssued, Subscribed & Paid up
6,52,80000 (Previous Year 6,52,80,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

6,530.00

6,528.00

6,530.00

6,528.00

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

At the Beginning of the Year

lssued During the Year

Outstanding at the End ofthe Year

6,52,80,000

6,52,80,000

6,52,80,000

6,52,80,000

As at
March 31, 2025

%Holdinss

Name of Promoter's

No.of Shares

PNC lnfratech Limited 10

PNC lnfra Holdings Limited 6,52,79,990 100
As at

March 31,2024
No.of shares %Holdings

Name of Promoter's

10PNC lnfratech Limited
100PNC lnfra Holdings Limited 6,52,79,990

@--
<--"- WI

Particulars

b



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC315515
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 11: Other Equitv

- Retained Earn

Retained Earnings
This comprise company's rofit after taxes.

ln Lakhs

,dst u,

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2025

(149.s2)
(179.s6)

(8e.21)
(60.30)

Opening Balance

Net Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive for the year

(149.s2)Closing Balance (32e.08)

&A*



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Prlvate Limited
CIN :U45309OUUo17PTC316515

Notes to The tinancial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 12: Borrowings
ln Lakhs

*Refer note.32

(i) First charge on allthe Company's immovable assets/ movable assets ( except project assets), if any, both present and future.
(ii) First charge overall revenue and receivables of the Company's from the project or otherwise.
(lii) First charge overthe rights, title and interest ofthe Company's related to the project from allcontracts, insurances, licenses,

in to and other all proied agreement.
(iv) First charge over all the banks accounts of the Company including the Escrow account and sub accounts.
(v) First charge on all intangibles of the borrower save and except the proiect assets.
(vi) A first charge by way of assignment orotheMise creation on security interest in allthe right, title, interest, benefits, claims,

and demands.
(Viii) Pledge of shares held by the promoter and or any other person aggregating to 51%

Note'The aforesaid shall be collectively referred to the "Security", The above security will rank pari passu interse amongst the
lenders

(i) 26 unequal half yearly installments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled Commercial Operation date .

(ii) Rate of inte.est- 1 Year MCLR 8.65% -0.15% (Presently 8.40% p.a.)

ltrcL
(i) 26 unequal half yearly jnstallments commencing after 7 month
(ii) Rate of interest- Base,Rate pluso.20y. (Presently 8.65% p.a.)

s from date of Scheduled Commercial Operation date

tr a
o('

As at
March 31,2024

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2025

46,717.80
4,432.OO

51,s43.8s
4,832.00

Secured
Term Loan

Less- Current Maturities of Long Term Debt
Total 41,879.80 45,771.85

lrnsecured

Unsecured Loan from Related Party' 6,272.O0 6,272.OO

Total 48,151.80 s2,983.85

Agj*

Nature of Security and Terms of Repayments for Long Term Sorrowingsr
(Al Nature of Security -

(B) Terms of Repayment

Axis Bank Limlted
(i) 26 unequal halfyearly installments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled Commercial Operation date .

(ii) Rate of interest- 1 Year MCLR 8.65% -0.15% (Presently 8.40% p.a.)

lndian Bank (E-Allahabad Eankl

(A) Nature of security -
(i) Flrst charge on all the Company's immovable assets/ movable assets ( except project assets), if any, both present and future.

(ii) Fi6t charge over all revenue and receiyables ofthe Company's from the proiect or otherwise.

(iii) First charge over the rights, title and interest of the Company's related to the project from all contracts, insurances, licenses,

in to and other all proiect agreement.
(iv) First charge over all the banks accounts of the Company including the Escrow account and sub accounts.

(v) First charge on all intangibles of the borrower save and except the proiect assets

(vi) A first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation on security interest in all the right, title, interest, benefrts, claims,

and demands.
(Viiil Pledge of shares held by the promoter and or any other person aggregating to 51%

Note- The aforesaid shall be collectively referred to the "Security". The above security will rank pari passu interse amongst the
lenders

(B) Terms of Repayment



PNC Eundellhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309DU10r.7PTG15515
Notes toThe Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note L3 : Provisions
ln Lakh

Note 14 : Currenl Borrowints
ln La

Note 15 : Trade Payables
ln Lakh

r The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualifo

under the definition of micro and small enterprises as delined under Mic.o, Small and Medium Development Act 2006 has been made in the

financial statement as at March 31, 2025 based on the information received and available with the company. On the basis of such information,

no interest is payable to any micro,small and medium enterprises. Audltors have relied upon the informations provided by the Company.

g includes t3719.02 Lakhs payable to related party.(P/Y 15972.61 takhs) Refer Note no -26)

The Company's exposure to currencl and liquidity risks related to the trdde payable is disclosed note no-28
ln Lakhs

A

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Provision forGratuity (Refer Note No.35)
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No.35)

6.23
1.83

5.59
2.05

Total 8.0s 7.55

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 4,a32.00 4,832.00

Total 4,a32.00 4,832.00

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2025

Total outstanding dues ofcreditors otherthan micro, small and medium enterprisesl
Related Party
Others

1s2.33
77.88

3,737.92
746.69

Total L70.27 3,884.61

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule Period

MSME Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year

l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

Others Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to l Year
l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

170.21 3.884.51

Oisputed-MSME Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to 1 Year
1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

Dirputed-Others Less than 6 Moths
6 Moths to 1 Year
l Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years

More than 3 Years

@-. 1,8*.

,"6@;)-r\



PNC Bundclltand Hichways Private Umited
CIN rU45309012017PTC315515
Notes toThe Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2025

Note 16 : Othei Financial tiabilities

Note 18 : Provisions

Note 20 : other lncome

ln ta

ln Ia

ln

ln Lakhs

ln Lakhs

Hc/\

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

Particulars

11.43
73.97

1,087.83
5.87 3.25

9.24
s8.52

0.90

Salary Payable

Retention Payable

Audit fees payable

Provision of lncome Tax

Other Payable

1,179.10 71.9LTotal

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

5.96

100.00
Statutory Dues Payable

Unclaimed Cheque

105.960.45Total

As at
Mardr 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

1.23
0.71

34.76

4.75
1.01

Employee Benefit
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note35)
Provision for Leave Encashment {Refer Note36)
Provision for Current Ta\12023-241
Provision For Expenses

918.1140.53

Period ended
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

5,575.7L

7,392.62
6,331.96

Construction Revenue
Finance lncome on Service Concession Receivables

5,575.71 7,724.54Total

Period ended
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Particulars

288.09

0.88

104.02

37.94

lnterest on Fixed Deposits
lnterest from Others
lnterest on lncome Tax Refund
lncome From Redemption of Mutual Fund

Gain/(Loss) on Fair valuatiortsiMutual Funds

366.45
L.57

79.L4
294.98

3.U

430.92,'1Total 685.98

Note 17 : Other Current Liabilities

Note 19 : Revenue from Operation

@--"

0.45

Particulars

/tr\Z-\<:::\
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PNC Bund€lkhand Hithways Private Limited
CIN :U453(x)DU017fi C316515
Notes toThe Financial Statements tor the Year Ended Ma,ch 31,2025

Note 21 : Employee SeneIit Expeniei

Nole 22 : Finance Cost

Note 23 : Other Expenses

As at
March 31, 2024

Pa.ticulars
Period ended

March 31,2025

99.39
2.06

u.54
2.02

Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds

101.44 86.56Total

ln

ln La

ln

Period ended
Ma,ch 31, 2025

A5 at
March 3t 2024

Particulars

4,423.87
4.04

4,739.32

5.22
lnterest Expenses on Term Loan

Bank Charges

4,744.55Total 4,427.U

Perigd ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars

Construction Expenses

Travelling Oomestic
Printing & Stationery
Legal & Professional
lndependent Engineer Fees

Audit Fee

Miscellaneous Exp

Site Expenses

Subcontracting Expenses

Mess Expenses

Hire charSes

Freight & Grtage
Labour charges
Electricity Expenses

Repair & Maintainance
lnsurance Charges

lnternet Charges

Office Maintainance Expenses

Penalty & lnterest Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Power & Fuel

CSR Expense'

90.90

3.69

9.40

17.79

37.93
17.00

1.40
234.88
139.95
251.85

3.23
11.13

7,576.U
4.48
0.30
7.37

68.33
1.00

53.92
189.34

2.57
32.12

1.54
115.07
227.28

7.36
0.35

(0.81)

0.s8

48.11
30.38
58.06

6.75
819.17 2,440.29

>< @v h
/



PNC Bundelkhand Highwavi Private Limited
CIN :U45309OU1017PTC316515

Notes toThe Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2025

*Disclosure with regard to CSR adivities

w AY

w

Sr. No. Particulars
Period ended

March 31,2025
Year ended

Ma.ch 31, 2024

1 Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 16.49 6.65
2 Amount of expenditure incurred 17.00 6.75
3 Shordall at the end of the year

4 Total of previous years shortfall
5 Reason for shortfall NA NA

6 Nature of CSR activities
Promoting

Plantation& animal
welfare etc.

Promoting animal
welfare etc.

7
Details of related party transactions, e.9., contribution to a trust controlled bythe company
in relation to €SR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

NA NA

NA
to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual

n during the year should be shown separately

Where a provigion is

obligation, the
NA

f

V



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CtN :U45309Dt2017PTCIr.5515
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. ln Lakh5 except No. of Shares & EPS)

Note 25 : Operating Segment lnformation
The Company operates in only one segment, namely'lnfrastructure development on Hybrid Annuity Model " hence there are no reportable
segments under lnd AS-108 'Segment Reportind, Hence, separate business segment information is not applicable,

The directors of the company has been identified as The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Operating Decision Maker also

monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance

assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.

There is only one than 10% of the total revenue

N

AY

Particulars
tor the period

ended
March 31,2025

Year €nded
March 31,2024

(a) Profiv(Loss) Available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. ln lakhs)

(b) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

(c ) Nominal value of Equity Shares (in l)

(179.s6)

6,52,80,000.00

10.00

(60.30)

6,s2,80,000.00

10.00

{d) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per share [(a]/(b) (in t) (0.28) (o.os)

Note 24 : Earning Per share

-\.



PNc Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN ;U45309Dt2017PTC315515
Notes to Th€ Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

a Parent Enti

*Holds 10 Equity Shares

(8) Transactions Between Related Parties
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.

Sr. No
Year ended

March 31, 2025

1

2

3

EPC Contract & Others
PNC lnfratech Limited

Hire Charges

PNC lnfratech Limited

Purchase of Material & Assets

PNC lnfratech Limited

7.20

130.14

L,393.22

28.80

9.13

(C ) Balance Outstanding at End of the Year

Particulars
As at March 31,

2025
As at

March 31, 2024

2

Trade Payables

PNC lnfratech Limited

Unsecured loan
PNC lnfratech Limited

717.82

6,272.OO

3,719.02

6,272.00

(D) Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel

Sr. No Key Managerial Personnel
Year ended

March 31, 2025

Year ended

Match 31, 2024

1 SulaxiAgarwal 1.5E 7.47

(El Terms and Conditions

The transactions with the related parties are made on term equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactlons. The

assessment is undert&n each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and in the market in
which the related party operates. All Outstanding balances will be settled in cash

Ownership lnter€st
Name Type As at March 31,

2025

As at
March 3t,2024

lmmediate Holding

Comoanv
too% 700%PNC lnfra Holdings Limited

Ultimate HoldingPNc lnfratech Limited*

YJ6ry &

Note 26: Related Party Transactions
(A) List of Related Parties

Nature ofTransaction
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Sr. No

I

b



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Llmlted
CIN :U45309OUI017PTC316515

Notes to The Flnancial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 27 : FalrValue Measurement

Flnan.lal lnstrumentr by Catetory
ln

(l) F.lr V.lue Hlerarchy

accounting standards.
The followlngtable provldes thefair value measurement hlerarchy ofCompany's asset and llabllitles, grouped Into l"evel 1to Level3 as descrlbed below:-

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for ldentical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that ls significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

Level3: Valuatlon techniques for whlch the lowest levelinputthat ls sl8nilicant to the fair value measurement ls unobservable

ln

h-.

As at March 31,2024As at Mar.h 31,2025
Partlculars

Amortlsed Cost FVTPL twocr Amortlsed Cost FVTPI. FVTOCI

53,102.02

1,543.27
4,447.27

4,r75.65

Flnandal Asi€t
Services Concession Receivable

lnvestments
Trade Recelvables

Cash and Bank Ealances

44,945.42

1,616.90
6,313.58

3,780.72

s9,086.5S 4,175.65Total Finandal Assets 52,875.90 3,740.72
Flnanclal Uabillties
Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

52,983.80
L70.2L

1,179.10

57,815,85
3,884.61

71.91
61,77234Total Financlal Llabilities 54,333.11

Falr value Measurement uslng

Partlculars
Carrylng Value

March 31,2025
Quoted Prlce ln
Actlve Market

(Level 1)

Sltnlflcant
observable

lnputs
(Level2)

Sltnlficant
Unobservable

lnputs
(tevel3)

(A) Flnanclal Assets and Llabllitles Meaiured at Amortlsed Cost lor
whl.h FalrValues are Dlsclosed at March 31, 2025
(l) Fln.nclalArsets
Service Concesslon Receivables
lnvestments

44,945.42
3,780.L2 3,780.72

44,945,42

44,945.42Total 48,725.54 3,740.72

s7,815.8s

(ll) Flnanclal Uabllltles
BorrowinSs 57,815.85

Total 57,815.85 57,815.85

lgrjP.Y



PNC Bundelkhand Hlthways Prlvate Umlted
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC316515
Notes to The Flnanclal Statements lor the Year Ended March 31,2025

ln Lakhs

(ll) Valuatlon Technlques Used to Detemlne FalrValu€

included at the amount that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability ln an orderly transadion betlveen market participants at the measurement date.

Specific valuatlon technique used to valuefinancial lnstrument includes:
>the fair value of fi nancial assets and liabllltles at amortised cost is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

The Followlng Method and Assumptlons are used to Estlmate Falr Valuesi

shon term nature.

company is consldered to be lnsignificant ln valuatlon.

cash flow (DCF)

Financialasrets and liabilities measured at value and the carrying amount is the fair value. n
-i lHi".,

Falr Value Measurement uilng

quoted prlce ln
Actlve Market

(tevel 1)

sltnitacant
obseruable

lnputs
(Level2)

Sltnlllcant
unobtervable

lnputs
(tevel 3l

Parti.ulars
C.rrylng Value

March 31,2024

(A) Flnanclal Assets rnd Uabllitles Measured Et Amortlsed Cost for
whl.h F.lr Values ar€ Dlsclosed at March 31, 2024
(l) Flnanclal A5s€ts

Service Concesslon Receivables

lnvestments
53,102.02

4,175,65 4,175.65
53,102.02

Total s7,277.66 4,L75.65 53,102.02
(ll) f hanclal Llablllties
Borrowings 57,815.85 57,815.85

Total 57,815.85 57,815,85



PNC Bundelkhand Hlghways Private limited
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC316515

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 28 : FINANCIAI, RISK MANAGEMENT

l. Market Rlsk

borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments.
(al lnterest Rate Rlsk

lnterest rate risk is company's cash flow and profit on account of movement in market interest rates. For the company interest risk arises mainly from interest bearing

borrowines which are at floating rates. To mitiqate interest rate risk, the company closelv monitors market risk.
{ tn Lakhs

(ll) lnterest Rate S€nsltlvlty

the company's profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowing as follows-

ln Lakhs

(b) Forelgn Currency Risk

The Company by nature does not operates internationally and as the Company has not obtained any foreign currency loans and also doesn't have any foreign currency trade
payables and foreign receivables outstanding therefore, the company is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk.

Price Risk
The company exposure to prlce risk a

period of time.

lv-..
ar end. These lnvestments are actively traded ln the market and are held for short

6ttu\r. A

(i) lnterest Rlsk Exposure
As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowinAs 46,717.80 51,543.85

Effect on profit
before tax

Particulars
increase/decrease

in basis points
March 31,2025
March 31,2024

+50/-50
+50/-50

-233.561233.s6
-257.72/257 .72

(c)

rises from investments in mutualfund at the current ye

that arise directly from its operations.

The Company's activities are exposed to Market Risk Credit Rlsk and tlquldlty Rlsk.



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Prlvate [imlted
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC315515
Notes to The Flnancial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

credlt Risk

of accounts receivable.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on going basis through

each reporting period. To assess whether there is significant increase in credit risk, it considers reasonable and supportive forward looking information such as:

(i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.
(ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the cou nterparty.
(iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant chanBe to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligation
(iv) Significant increase in credit risk an other financial instruments of the same counterparty
(v) significant changes in the value of collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party tuarantees or credit enhancements

The company has only one trade receivables that a company has are against the the grant to be received, which is a government authority ,therefore company is not exposed

international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Uquldity Risk

Llquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's obiective is to at all times
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. ln addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through
rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.
The table below provides details re8arding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments:

(t ln takhsl

As at March 31, 2025 Carryint Amount On Demand

More than One

Year and Less than Morethan3Years
Three Year

Total

.

Less than
One Year

gorrowings

Trade Payables

Other Liabilities
Total

52,983.80
t70.27

1,179.10

4,832.00
170.21

7,179.70

38,487.80 52,983.80

t70.27
1,179.10

54,333.11 6,181.31 9,664.00 38,487.80 54,333.LL
(( ln takhs)

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount On Demand
Less than
One Year

More than One

Year and Less than Morethan3Years
Three Year

Total

Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Liabilities
Total

57,815.85
3,884.61

71.97

4,832.00
3,884.61

77.97

9,664.00 43,319.85 57,815.85
3,884.61

77.9L

9p 77234

L
6

A,riel

788.53 .00 43 19.85 61,772.34

.

9,664.00

JI



PNC Eundelkhand Hithways Private Limited
CIN :U45309Ot2017PTC315515
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 29 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments ( to the extend not provided for)-

^

l6-!i'P

ln
As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31,2024
10.46

1,230.00
10.46

1,230.00

Bank Guarantee (lssued by the Company)
Bank Guaranteqltlued by Ultimate holdinS i.e. PNC lnfratech Limited on behalf of the Company)

1,,240,46 1,240.45,/rSsLf9&\ Total

\

Particulars



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309DU1017PTC315515
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 30: Capital Management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements

of the financial covenants, if any. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

net debt-
ln Lakhs Except Ratio)

Note 31 i Concession Arrantement- Main Features

i) Name of the Concession

ii) Description of Arrangements

PNC Bundelkhand Highways (P) Limited

Development of Four of Jhansi Khajuraho sedion (pkg-1) from
km.0.00 to 76.3009 (existing km 106.300 Kanpur.,hansi section
to km 82.100) of NH-75/75 in the state of UPl MP under NHDP

phase- lllon Hybrid annuity Model.

iii) Significant Term of Arrangements Period of Concession: 15 years from COD

Construction Period : 910 days

Remuneration: Annuity, lnterest, O&M
lnvestment grant from Concession grantor: Yes

lnfrastructure return to grantor at end of Concession : Yes

lnvestment and renewal obligation: No
Repricing dates- Half yearly for O&M basis upon which
repricing or re negotiation is determined : lnflation price

index as defined in concession agreement.

Note 32: Unsecured loan of{6272.00 Lakhs taken by the company from related party( Ultimate parent Company) is in lieu of equity
as perterms of Concession Agreement dated June 07, 2017, which is interest free.

Note 33 : Details of loan given, investments made and guarantee given covered U/s 186 ofthe Companies Act,2013-

The Company is engaged in the busin
(the "Act") and hence the provision

applicable to the Compa+Jhere are
,': :' "Note 34 : FisurdJtftha previous

classification. /$J
\i"t(Q-,'ir:.Y

ess of providing infrastrucal facilities as specified under Schedule Vl of the Companies Act 2013,

of section 186 of the Ad related to loan/ guarantees given or securities provided are not
no investments made by the Company during the period.

period have been regrouped/rearranged, whereever necessary to confirm the current yeat

As at
March 31, 2024

Total Borrowings (excluding unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-32)

Less- Cash & Cash Equivalents

46,77L.AO

6,313.s8

51,543.85

4,M|.27
Debt (a) 40 394.22 47,102.58

Equity Share Capital (including unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-32)

Other Equity

12,800.00

(329.08)

12,800.00

(149.s2)

Total Equity (B) 72,470,92 L2,55O.48

Debt to Equity Ratio (A/B) 3.24 3.72

,St:)Y.

The primary obiective of the Company's Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce cost of capital, ln order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, return on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Particulars
As at

March 31,2025



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U4s309Dl.2017PTC315515
Notes to The Financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 35 -The disdosure is required by |NDA919 ' Employee Benefits" are as under-
The LiabiliW for Employee Gratuity is deteremined on acturial valuation using Projected unit credit method.
The obligation are as under-

Table 1: Member Data Statistics

Table 2: Benelits Valued

Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions

v ,&r)"

S.No. Particulars
Forthe year€nding

31{3-2025 31-03-2024

-t

2

3

4
5

6
7

Number of Employees
Normal Retirement Age
Average Age (in yrs)
Average Past Service (in yrs)
Average Monthly Salary (in Rs)

Future Se.vice (in yrs)

weighted Average duration of DBO

38
50

39.29
3.68

75,755
20.77
3.75

37
60

36.16
3.57

Lt,542
23.44
3.90

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Eligibility
Gratuity Salary

Service

Minimum vesting period

Normal Retirement Benefit

Death/Disability in Service 8enefi t

Leaving Service Benefit

All perma.ent employees
Easic + DA (if Applicable)

Completed years of service, service of 5

months & above is rounded as one year

5 Years of continuous service

15/26*Service ' Gratuity Salary sub.iectto

20,00,000/-

Same as normal retirement benefit

lf leaves after 5 years of continuous

service - Normal Retirement Benefit.

lf leaves before 5 years of continuous

service - Nil

For the year ending
S.No. Particulars

31{3-2025 31-03-2024
1

2

3

4

5

6

Discount Rate

Expeded Return on Plan Assets

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.)

Attrition Rate (p.a.)

Mortality Rate

D

5.55%

0.00%
5.00%

25.OO%

100% of IALM

72-14

No expllcit

6.96%
0.00%

s.00%
25.00%

100% of IALM

t2-74

No explicit

^bk



PNC Bundelkhand Highrxays Private Limited
CIN :U453090U!017PTC316515
Notes to The financial Statements fo. the Year Ended March 31,2025

valuation oisclosure Tables
Table 4: Cha in Defined Benefit Obl on

Bifurcation of the resent value of obli on atthe end of the

Table 5: Change in Fairvalue of Plan Assets

(t ln Lakhs)

ln

01{r4-2024 To
31-03-2025

01-04-2023 To
3t-03-2024

S.No. Particulars

5

6

7

1

2

4
0.36

6.42

s.20

1.44

0.01
(0.20)

Delined benefit obligation at beglnning ofyear
Service cost
a. Current service cost
b. Past service cost - vested
c. Past service cost - unvested
lnterest expenses

Cash flows
a. Eenefit payments from plan

b. Benefit payments from employer
Aduarial Gains and Losses

a, Effect of changes in demographic assumptions
b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions
c. Effect ofexperience adjustments
Transfer ln /Out
a. Transfer ln
b. Transfer out
Defined benefit obligation at end of year

o.47

10.99

6.42

1.41

0.10
2.77

Paniculars 31-03-2025 37-0?-2024
Current Obligations
Non-Cur.ent Obligations
TotalObligation

4.76
6.23

10.99

7.23

5.59
6.42

01{4-2024 To 01{4-2023 To
S.No. Particula.s

31{3-2025 3\43-2024

8

9

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

Fairvalue of plan assets at beginning of year

Other Adjustments
Charges and Taxes

Expected return on plan asset5

Cashflows

a. Total employer's contribution
(i) Employer contributions
(ii) Employer direct benefit payments

b, Benefit payments from plan assets

c. Benefit payments from employer
ActuarialGains and Losses on Plan Assets
a. Effect of changes in financial assumptions
b. Effed ofexperience adjustments
Transfer ln /Out
a. Transfer ln
b. Transfer out
Fair value-of plan assets at end of year
Actual Retrrm On Plan Assets

fiA-
\ v



PNc Bundelkhand Highways Private timited
CIN :U45309Dt2017PTC315515
Notes to The Financial Stat€ments for the Yeat Ended March 31, 2025

Table 6: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

Table 7: Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the Profit and Loss

Table 8: Re-measurement

Table 9: Ealance Sheet Reconcilliation

Tablelo: Expeded Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability

ln Lakhs

ln La

ln Lakhs

ln

ln La

@-

0744-2024 fo 01{4-2023 To
S.No. Particulars

31-03-2025 31.o3-2024
1

2

3
4

5

Defi ned benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Funded status - Deficiv (Surplus)

Effect of asset ceiling
Net defined benefit - (Uability)/ Asset

10.99

10.99

rro.rrt

6.82

6.42

tu.rrt

01{4-2023 To01-04-2024 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024

S.No. Particula.s

Current Service Cost

lnterest Expense - Obligation
lnterest (lncome) - Plan Assets

Past Service Cost

Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the P & L 1.89

1.41

o.47

1.81

7.M
0.36

1

2

3

4
5

01{14-2024 To
31-03-2025

01-04-2023 To
31-03-2024

Particulars

2.24

2.28

(0.19)

(0.1e)

1

2

4

Aduarial (Gains)/ Losses on obligations
Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognized in the net interest
Change in Asset Ceiling
Re-measurement Cost/ (Credit) for the year

01-04-2024 To
31{3-2025

01-04-2023 To
31-03-2024

S.No. Particulars

1

2

3
4
5

5

7

8

Net defined benefit (liability) asset at beginning ofyear
Unrecognised past service cost at the beginning ofthe year

Expense ln the P& L

Total Remeasurements included in OCI

Employer's Total Contribution
Net transfer
Unrecognised past service cost at the end ofthe year
Net defined benefit (liability) asset as at end ofyear (10.99)

(6.82)

(1.8s)

12.28)

(5.82)

(s.20)

(1.81)

0.19

1

2

Expeded employer conkibutions Next year

Discontinuance liability

S.No

1

2

3
4
5

6

5.07
1.53

L.2A

1.08
0.89
2.47

V ilgt" I, A
v

S.No.

1.4L

13.10

Maturity of Defined Benerit Obligation
Expeded Benefit

Payment

2026
2027
2024
2029
2030

2031 - 2036



Table u: Recognistion of Past service Cost

S.No, Particulars
O1-04-2024 To

31.03-202s
01-04-2023 To
31{3-2024

1

2

3
4

Unrecognized Past Service Cosv(Credit) as at the beginning of the year

Past Service Cost (Credit)forthe year
Past service (Cost)/ Credit recognized during the year
Unrecognized Past Service Cosv(Credit) as at the end ofyear

Table 12: Major Categories of Plan Assets(as a % of total Plan Assets)

5.No, Asset Cate8ories
For the year ending

31-03-202s 31{3-2024
1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

Government of lndia Securities
State Government Secudties
High Quality Corporate Bonds

Equity shares of listed companies
Property
Special Deposit Scheme

Funds managed by lnsurer
Others (to specify)
Total

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

o.oo%

0.00%

0.00%

o.oo%

o.oo%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

o.oov.
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Table 13: Sensitivity of Derined Benefit Obligation (DBO) to key assumptions (< ln Lakhs)

The financial results are sensitive to the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase and

decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are given below:

&w

Scenario DBO variation5.No.
1

2

3

4
5

5

7

Under Base Scenario
Salary lncrease Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points

Salary lncrease Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points
Withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basis Point5

100 Basis Points
us 100 Basis Points

10.99
7r.23
10.75
10.95
11.01
10.61
11.15

0.00%

2.26%
-2.76vo

4.25%
0.24%
-3.42%

7s6%

PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309OUI017PTCI1651S
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,2025

Rate

- Minus 100 Basis Point5



PNC Bundelkhand Highwavs Private Limited
CIN :U45309D12017PTC315515

Notes to The Financial Statementi for the Year Ended March 31,2025

Table 14: Risk Exposure

Provision of a detined benefit scheme poses certain risks as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make future
pension payments as follows:

Liability Risks

Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk

Risk if there is a mismatch in the duration
of the assets .elative to the liabilities. By

matchin8 duration with the defined

benefit liabilities, the company is

successfully able to neutralize valuation

swings Grused by interest rate

movements. Hence companies are

encouraged to adopt asset-liability

Oiscount Rate Risk

Variations in the discount rate used to

compute the present value of the

liabilities may seem small, but in practice

can have a significant impact on the

defined benefit liabilities.

1

Future Salary Escalation and lnflation Risk -

Since price inflation and salary groMh are

linked economically, they are combined

for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will

often resuh in higher future defined

benefit payments resulting in a higher

present value of liabilities especially

unexpected salary increases provided at

management's discretion may lead to
estimation uncertainties increasing this

risk.

unfunded Plan Risk

This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default
on paying the benefits in adverse circumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility from the balance sheet and
better Di!6!+{efined benefit risk through increased returns

dW
2



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Llmited
clN :U45309Du1017PTC316515
Notes to Ihe Financial Stat€ments for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 36 : The disclosure is required by INDAS-19 "Employee Benefits" are as under-
The liabilityfor Employee Leave Plan is detereminded on acturial valuation using Projected unit credit method.

Tabl€ 1: Member Data Statistics

Table 2: Benefits valued

Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumption5

Leave Availment and Encashment Assum

5.No. Particulars
For the year ending

31-03-2025 31-03-2024

1

2

4
5

6

Discount Rate

Expected Return on Plan Assets
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.)

Attrition Rate (p.a.)

Mortality Rate

Disability Rate

5.55%
0.00%
5.00%

25.00%
100% |ALM 2012-14
No explicit provision

6.96%
0.00%
5.OO%

2s.0096

100% |ALM 2012-14
No explicit provision

h,(

5.No. Particulars
For the year ending

31-03-2025 31-03.2024

1

2

3

4
5

6

Number of Employees
Normal Retirement Age

Average Age (in yrs)

Average Monthly Encashment 5alary
Total Leave balance (in days)

weighted Average duration of DBO

38
60

39.29
15,755
582.60

3.75

37
60

36.16
7t,542
690.28

3.90

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

8

9

Type of Plan

Normal Retirement Age
salaryfo. calculation of leave encashment

9laryfor calculation of leave availment
Type of leave valued
Cap on leave accumulation
Encashment during employment
Days in a month (for calculations)

Normal Retirement Benefit

Death in Service Benefit
Leaving Service Benefit
Availment Pattern
Encashment in service - Pattern

Other LongTerm Benefits

60
Basic

Not Used

Privilege Leave

45 Days

Not Allowed
30 days

1/30 x salary x numb€r of unused leave days

same as normal retirement
Same as normal retirement
NA
NA

)

%l
lin%Availmen

Enca /)

@y.

10
11

72

13

1

2

V



PNc Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
ON :U453(xrDL2017PTC31551s
Notes to The Financial Statements to.the Year Ended March 31,2025

valuation Disclosure Tables

Table 4: Cha in oefined Benefit

Bifurcation of the nt value of obl at the end of the

Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

ln lakhs

ln La

S.No. For th€ Year
Ol4+2O24 To
31-03-2025

01{4-2023 To
31-03-2024

6

1

1

2

3

4

Defined benefit obligation at beginning ofyear
Service cost
a. Current service cost
b. Past service cost - vested

c. Past service cost - unvested
lnterest exp€nses

cash flows
a, Benefit payments f.om plan

b. Benefit payments from employer
Actuarial 6ains and Losses

a. Effect ofchanges in demographic assumptions

b. Effed ofchanges in financial assumptions

c. Effect of experience adjustments
Transfer ln /Out
a. Transfer ln

b. Transfer out
Defined benefit obligation at end of year

0.19

2.84

2.76

0.80

0.03
(0.es)

2.7 6

2.38

o.78
0.15

o.t7

0.00
(0.73)

31-03-2025 31-03-2024Particulars
Current Obligations
Non-Current Obligations
TotalObligation

1.01
1.83
2.44

0.71
2.05
2.76

S.No. For the Year
01-04-2024 To
31-03-2025

01{4-2023 To
31-03-2024

1

2

3

4
5

8

9

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Other Adjustments
charges and Taxes

Expected return on plan assets

cashflows
a, Total employer's contribution
(i) Employer contributions
(ii) Employer direct benefit payments
b. genefit payments from plan assets

c. Benefit payments from employer
Actuarial Gains and Losses on Plan Assets

a. Effect ofchanges in financial assumptions
b. Effect of experience adiustments
Transfer ln /Out
a. Transfer ln
b. Transfer out

Assets

lue atend ofyearFair va

Actual

K/ss g

6

7



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
CIN :U45309DL:!017PTC316515
Notes to The Financial Statements forthe Year Ended March 31,2025

Table 6: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

Table 7: Net Periodic b€nefit cost recognized in the Prollt and Loss

Table 9: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability

ln

ln La

ln

01-04-2024 To
31-03-202S

01-04-2023 To

3t-03-2024
S.No. For the Year

2.44

2.44
(0.e2)

(2.84)

2.76

2.76
(0.73)

l.2.761

1

3

4
5

6

Defined benefit obligation
Fairvalue of plan assets

Funded status - Deficit/ (Surplus)

Actuarial (Gains) and Losses - on Obligations
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) - on Plan Assets

Net defined benefit - (Llability)/ Asset

01-0+2024 To
31-03-2025

01-04-2023 To
3t-03-2024S.No. For the Year

0.80
0.19

(0.s2)

0.07

0.78
0.77

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

Current Service Cost

lnterest Expense - Obligation
lnterest (lncome)- Plan Assets
Past S€rvice Cost
Actuarial (Gains)and Losses - on Obligations
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) - on Plan Assets

Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the P & L

01-04-2024 To
31-03-2025

01-04-2023 To

31-03-2024
S.No. For the Year

(2.84)

12.761

(0.07)

12.16!.

(2.38)

(0.38)

1

2

3
4

5

Net defined benefit (liability) asset at beginning of period

Expense ln the P& L

Employer's Total Contribution
Net transfer

Net defined benefit (liability) asset as at end of period

contributions Next f 0.80E ln

v

5.No Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Expected Benefit

Payment

1

2

3
4

5

5

7

2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

2031 - 2035
beyond 2035

1.08
0.s2
o.47
0.32
0.25
0.66
o.L4

&ie. {

Table 8: Balance sheet Reconcilliation

0.38

0.15
(0.73)

,,"q'<X

Y



PNC Bundelkhand Highways Private Limited
ON :U453GrDuloUPTC316515
Note5 to The Financial Statements forthe Year Ended March 31,2025

Table 10: Maior Categories ot Plan Assets(as a % oftotal Plan Ass€ts)

Table 11: sensitivity of Delined Benefit Obligation (D8o) to key assumptions ({ ln Lakhs}

The financial results are sensitive to the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase

and decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are given below:

w&

S.No. Asset Categories
For the year ending

31.03-2025 31-03-2024
1

2

3

4
5

6
7

8

9

Government of lndia Securities
State Government Securities
High Quality Corporate Eonds
Equity shares of listed companies
Property
Special Deposit Scheme
Funds managed by lnsurer
others (to specify)

otal

0.00%
0.00%
o.oo%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
o.aovo

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

S.No. scenario DBO Variation

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

Under gase Scenario
Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points
Salary lncrease Rate - Minus 10O Basis Points
With4rawal Rate - Plus 10O Basis Points

D

withdra nus 100 Basis Points
Disco

Ba5is Points

2.84
2.90

2.84
2.83
2.76
2.92

0.00%
2.31%
-2.79%

0.11%
-o.72%
-2.60%

2.78%

Y
Basis Points



PNC Bundelkhand Hithways Private Limited

CIN :U45309DU2017PTC316515

Notes to The Financial statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Note 37; Ratios
The followi are anal al ratios for the r ended March 3 2025 and March 31,2024

Year ended

March 31,

2024
Variances

(%)

Eelanatlon
reSarding vadane if

> 259tr

March 31,

2025
Sr. No. Particulars

I 2.10 1.04 102.39
Due to collection from

receivables.
(Current asseti divided by current liablities )

Current Ratio (times)

2

3.75 4.07 (7.97) Not Applicable

(Long-term borrowings, Short-te.m bo.rowings and current maturities of long term

borrowings excluding unsecured borrowing take. and outstanding from uhimate

holding company(i.e. PNC lnfratech Limited) divided by total equity induding
unsecured loan taken from ultimate holdingcompany

Debt-Equity Ratio (times)

3
Due to decreae in

finance costs
(Profrt b€fore lntered, Tax and Exceptional item divided by Inteaest Expenses

together with principal repayment of LonS-term borrowings)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times)

1.06 79.tt

4
(Profit after Tax divided by Total Equity, total equity also includes unsecured loan

taken from ultimate holdingcompany i.e. from PNc lnfrateech Limited)

Return on Equiw Latlo_(:_6) _ _
(1.44) (0.48) 199.96

lnventory Turnover Ratio (times)

NA NA NA
(Cost ofGoods sold divided by Avera8e inventory)

Cost of Goods sold = Cost of materials coniumed + Contract Paid + Construction

expen5e5

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (times)
(Revenue from operation divided by Ave.age Trade Receivable including service

concessioon .eceivable)

0.11 0.13 (1s.24) Not Applicable

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (times)
(Purchase divided by Ave.age Creditor)

0.04 0.32 (8s.99)
Due to decr€ase in

Construction Expenses

Net CapitalTurnover Ratio (tim€s)
(Revenue from operation divided by working capital(working capital refers to net
current assets arrived after reducing current liabilities )

0.10 18.00 (se.43)
Due to decrease in

Construqtion revenue

9
(Profit after Tax divided by Revenue from operation)
Net Profit Ratio (%)

l'3.22]. (0.78) 372.87
Due to increase in

current tax expenSe.

10 Return on Capital Employed (%)
(EBffDA divided by Gpital employed (capital employed arived afte. reducing
current liabilitie5)

9.82 9.48 3.56 Not Applicable

11 Return on lnvestment (%)
(Profit after tax/fotal tusets)

(0.30) (0.0e) 229.33
Due to increase in

current tax expen5e.
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